UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION 8 : S
1595 WYNKOOP STREET o
DENVER, CO 80202-1129
Phone 800-227-8917
http://www.epa.gov/region08

DOCKET NO.: CWA-08-2009-0033

IN THE MAT" _R OF:
UNIVERSITY ¢ TOLORADO FINAL ORDER

RESPONDENT

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §22.18, of EPA’s Consolidated Rules of Practice, the Consent
Agreement resolving this matter is hereby approved and incorporated by reference into this Final
Order. The Respondent is hereby ORDERED to comply with all of the terms of the Consent
Agreement, effective immediately upon receipt by Respondent of this Consent Agreement and

Final Order.

SOORDERED THIS - -  DAYOF , 2000,

clyana R. Sutin
Regional Judicial Officer



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 8 |

Tn the Matter of: )
)
University of Colorado )
)

) EXPEDITED CONSENT AGREEMENT

) DOCKET NO.: CWA-08-2009-0033

Respondent. )

Complainant, United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8, and
Respondent, University of Colorado, by its undersigned representative, hereby settle the civil
cause of action arising out of a spill of oil that occurred ont or about December 5, 2008, and agree
as follows:

The Clean Water Act (the Act), as amended, authorizes the Administrator of EPA to
assess administrative penalties against any person who discharges oil into or upon the navigable
waters and adjoining shorelines of the United States in quantities that have been determined may
be harmful to the public health or welfare or environment of the United States, 33 U.S.C. §
1321(b)(6) and (b)(3). This determination includes discharges of oil that (1) violate applicable
water quality standards; (2) cause a film, sheen, or discoloration of the surface of the water or the
adjoining shoreline; or (3) cause a sludge or emulsion to be deposited beneath the surface of the
water or the adjoining shoreline, 40 C.F.R. § 110.3. This authority has been properly delegated
to the undersigned EPA official.

Respondent owns and/or operates University of Colorado’s University Memorial Center
located near the corner of Folsom Street and Taft Avenue, Boulder, Colorado.

Respondent admits that on or about December 5, 2008, Respondent has a discharge of
approximately 30-50 gallons of heal-transfer oil into or upon Boulder Creek. Boulder Creek is a

tributary of the St. Vrain River.



Respondent’s discharge caused a sheen upaon, or discoloration of, or caused a sludge or
emulsion to be deposited beneath the surface of Boulder Creek.

Respondent’s discharge constitutes a violation of Section 3[1(b)(3) of the Act.

Respondent admits that EPA has jurisdiction in this proceeding.

Respondent waives its right to a hearing before any civi] fribunal, to contest any 1ssue of
law or fact set forth in this agreement.

This agreement, upon Incorporation into a final order, applies to and is binding upon EPA
and upon Respondent and Respondent’s heirs, successors and assigns. Any change in ownership
or corporate status of Respondent, including but not limited to any transfer of assets or real or
personal property, shall not alter Respondent’s responsibilities under this agreement.

This agreement contains all terms of the settlement agreed to by the parties.

Respondent consents and agrees to the assessment of a civil penalty of § 500.00 for the
discharge of oil in violation of Section 311(b)(3) of the Act, which, shall be paid no later than
thirty (30) days after the effective date of the Final Order by means of a cashier's or certified
check, or by wire transfer. If paying by check, the Respondent shall submit a cashier's or
certified check, payable to "Environmental Protection Agency,” and bearing the notations
“OSLTF — 3117 and the title and docket number of this case. If the Respondent sends payment
by the U.S. Postal Service, the payment shall be addressed to:

U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
PO Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000
I the Respondent sends payment by overnight mail, the payment shouid be sent to:
U.S. Bank
1005 Convention Plaza

Mail Station SL-MQ-C2GL
St. Louls, MO 63101



Contact: Natalie Pearson
314-418-4087

Wire transfers should be directed to:
Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA: 021030004
Account: 68010727
SWIFT address: FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10045
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 Environmental Protection
Apency”
The Respondent shall submit copies of the check (or, in the case of a wire transfer, copies
of the confirmation) to the following persons:
Tina Artemis, Regional Hearing Clerk (8RC)
U.S. EPA Region 8
1595 Wynkoop
Denver, CO 80202-1129
and
Donna K. Inman
Technical Enforcement Program (8ENF-UFQ)
U.S. EPA Region 8
1595 Wynkoop
Denver, CO §0202-1129
Respondent states, under penalty of perjury, that it has (1) investigated the cause of the
spill; (2} cleaned up the spill pursuant to federal requirements; and (3) taken corrective measures
to prevent future spills.
Respondent {urther agrees and consents thal 1f Respondent fails to pay the penalty
amount as required by this agreement once incorporated into the final order, or fails to make the

corrective measures to obtain compliance or has not cleaned up the discharged oil as represented,

this agreement is null and void, and EPA may pursue any applicable enforcement options.



The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he/she is fully authorized to
enter into the terms and conditions for this agreement and to bind Respondent to the terms and
conditions of this agreement.

The parties agree to submit this Consent Agreement to the Regional Judicial Officer,
with a request that it be incorporated into a final order.

Each party shall bear its own costs and attorneys fees in connection with this matter.

This Consent Agreement, upon incorporation into a final order by the Regional Judicial
Officer and full satisfaction by the parties, shall be a complete and full civil settlement of the
specific violations described in this agreement.

This Agreement is subject to the following “Special Provisions” of the State of Colorado
Fiscal Rules, which are attached hereto and are hereby incorporated by reference, with the
express exception of provision numbers 6 and 10-12 which are not applicable. All references to
“Contractor” shall be deemed to apply to the EPA.

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION 8,
Office of Enforcement Compliance and Environmental Justice, Complainant.

By: : Date: _ B

- Marl A R. Chalfant, Director

Technical Enforcement Program
Office of Enforcement, Compliance and
Environmental Justice

University of Colorado, Respondent.

By: Lb' S '\‘,@j. Date: oqias | o
Name: . S Ty
Tite: . O e _

COLORADO 8™ T i+ ONTROLLER/ * ,
DAVID J. MCl MO '

By: - _ -

Date: 0 _ -



SPECIAL PROVISIONS

These Special Provisions apply to all contracts except where noted in ftalics,

1. CONTROLLER'S APPROVAL. CRS §24-30-202(1). This contract shall not be valid until it has been
approved by the Colorade State Controller or designee.

2. FUND AVAILABILITY. CRS §24-30-202(5.5). Financial obligations of the State payable after the
current fiscal year are contingent upen funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and
otherwise made available.

3. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. No term or conditicn of this contract shall be construed or interpreted
as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protections, or other provisions,
of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, CRS §24-10-101 &t seq., or the Federai Tort Claims Act, 28
U.S.C. §§1346(b) and 2671 et seq., as applicable now or hereafter amended.

4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Contractor shall perfarm its duties hereunder as an independent
contractor and not as an employee. Neither Contracter nor any agent or employee of Contractor shail be
deemed {o be an agent or employee of the State. Contractor and its employees and agents are not
entitled to unemployment insurance or workers compensation benefits through the State and the State
shall not pay for or otherwise provide such coverage for Contractor or any of its agents or employees.
Unemployment insurance benefits will be available to Contractor and its employees and agents only if
such coverage is made availabie by Contractor or a third party. Contractor shall pay when due all
applicable employment taxes and income taxes and local head taxes incurred pursuant to this contract.
Contractor shall not have authorization, express or impiied, to bind the State to any agreement, liability or
understanding. except as expressly set forth herein. Contractor shall (a) provide and keep in force
workers' compensation and unemployment compensation insurance in the amounts required by law, (b)
provide proof thereof when requested by the State, and (c) be solely respensible for its acts and those of
its employees and agents.

5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. Contractor shall strictly comply with all applicable federal and State laws,
rules, and regulations in effect or hereafter established, including, without limitation, laws applicable to
discrimination and unfair employment practices.

6. CHOICE OF LAW. Colorado law, and rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, shall be applied
in the interpretation, execution, and enforcement of this contract. Any provision included or incorporated
herein by reference which conflicts with said laws, rules, and regulations shall be null and void. Any
provision incorperated herein by reference which purports to negate this or any other Special Provision in
whole or in part shall not be valid or enforceable or available in any action at law, whether by way of
complaint, defense, or otherwise. Any provision rendered null and void by the operation of this provision
shall not invalidate the remainder of this contract, to the extent capable of execufion.

7. BINDING ARBITRATION PROHIBITED. The State of Colorado does not agree to binding arbitration
by any extra-judicial body or person. Any provision to the contrary in this contact or incorporated herein
by reference shall be nuil and void.

8. SOFTWARE PIRACY PROHIBITION. Governor's Executive Order D 002 00. State or other public
funds payable under this contract shall not be used for the acquisition, operation, or maintenance of
computer software in violation of federal copyright laws or applicable licensing restrictions. Contractor
hereby certifies and warrants that, during the term of this contract and any extensions, Contractor has
and shall maintain in place appropriate systems and controls to prevent such improper use of public
funds. If the State determines that Contractor is in violation of this provision, the State may exercise any
remedy available at law or in equity or under this contract, including, without limitation, immediate
termination of this contract and any remedy consistent with federal copyright laws or applicable licensing
restrictions.

9. EMPLOYEE FINANCIAL INTEREST/CONFLICT OF INTEREST. CRS §§24-18-201 and 24-50-507.
The signatories aver that to their knowledge, no employee of the Stafe has any personal or beneficial
interest whatsoever in the service or property described in this contract. Contractor has no interest and



shall not acquire any interes!, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the
performance of Contractor's services and Contractor shall not employ any persoen having such known
interests.

10. VENDOR OFFSET. CRS §§24-30-202 (1) and 24-30-202.4. {Not Applicable to intergovernmental
agreements] Subject to CRS §24-30-202.4 (3.5), the State Controller may withhold payment under the
State’s vendor offset intercept system for debls ocwed to State agencies for: (a) unpaid child support debts
or child support arrearages; (b) unpaid balances of tax, accrued interest, or other charges specified in
CRS §39-21-101, et seq.; (¢) unpaid loans due to the Student Loan Division of the Department of Higher
Education; (d} amounts required to be paid tc the Unemployment Compensation Fund; and (e) other
unpaid debis owing to the State as a result of final agency determination or judicial action,

11. PUBLIC CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES. CRS §8-17.5-101. [Not Applicable to agreements
relating to the offer, issuance, or sale of securities, investment advisory services or fund
management services, sponsored projects, intergovernmental agreements, or information
technology services or products and services] Contractor certifies, wamrants, and agrees that it does
not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will perform work under this contract and will
confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment in the United
States to perform work under this contract, through participation in the E-Verify Program or the
Departmen{ program established pursuant to CRS §8-17.5-102(5){c), Contractor shall not knowingly
employ or contract with an illegal alien to perfarm work under this contract or enter into a contract with a
subcontracter that fails to certify to Contractor that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or
contract with an iltegal alien to perform work under this contract. Contractor (a) shall not use E-Verify
Program or Department program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants
while this contract is being performed, (b) shall notify the subcontractor and the contracting State agency
within three days if Contractor has actual knowledge that a subcontractor is employing or contracting with
an illegal alien for work under this contract, {¢) shall terminate the subcontract if a subconfractor does not
stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within three days of receiving the notice, and (d) shall
comply with reasonable requests made in the course of an investigation, undertaken pursuant to CRS §8-
17.5-102(5), by the Colorado Depariment of Labor and Employment. If Contractor participates in the
Deparment program, Contractor shall deliver to the contracting State agency, Institution of Higher
Education or political subdivision a written, notarized affirmation, affirming that Cantractor has examined
the legal work status of such employee, and shall compiy with all of the other requirements of the
Department program. If Contractor fails to comply with any requirement of this provision or CRS §8-17.5-
101 et seq., the contracting State agency, institution of higher education or polifical subdivision may
terminate this contract for breach and, if so terminated, Contractor shall be liabte for damages.

12. PUBLIC CONTRACTS WITH NATURAL PERSONS. CRS §24-76.5-101. Contractor, if a natural person
eighteen (18) years of age ar older, hereby swears and affirms under penatty of perjury that he or she (a) is a
citizen or otherwise lawfully present in the United States pursuant to federal faw, (b) shall comply with the
provisions of CRS §24-76.5-101 et seq., and {c¢) has produced one form of identfication required by CRS
§24-76.5-103 prior to the effective date of this contract.

Revised 1-1-09



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned certifies that the original of the attached EXPEDITED CONSENT
AGREEMENT/FINAL ORDER in the matter of UNIVERSITY OF COLORADO;
DOCKET NO.: CWA-08-2009-0033 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on September

29, 2009.

Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the documents were
delivered Amy Swanson, Senior Enforcement Attorney, U. S. EPA — Region 8, 1595 Wynkoop
Street, Denver, CO 80202-1129. True and correct copies of the aforementioned documents
were placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt requested on September 29, 2009

E-mailed to:

September 29, 2009

Ms. Elvira Strehle-Henson

Senior Associate University Counsel
Special Assistant Attorney General
Office of the University Counsel
University of Colorado at Boulder
924 Broadway Street — 13 UCB
Boulder, CO 80309-0013

Michelle Angel

U. §. Environmental Protection Agency
Cincinnati Finance Center

26 W. Martin Luther King Drive {MS-0002)
Cincinnati, Ohio 45268

lina Artemis
Paralegal/Regional Hearing Clerk

@Pn’nred on Recycled Paper



